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BILL LOCK.YER, Attonley General 
of the State of Califonria 

MARGARET A. LAFKO 
Supervising Deputy Attonley General 

SUSAN FITZGERALD, State Bar No. 112278 
Deputy Attorney General 

California Department of Justice 
110 West "A" Street, Suite 1100 
San Diego, CA 92101 

P.O. Box 85266 
San Diego, CA 92186-5266 
Telephone: (619) 645-2066 
FacsiInile: (619) 645-2061 

Attorneys for Conlplainant 

BEFORE THE 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

GLENN GREENBERG 
30153 Callaway Circle 
Munieta, CA 72563 

Original Phannacist License No. RPH 49982 

Respondent. 

Case No. 3002 

DEFAULT DECISION 
AND ORDER 


[Gov. Code, §11520] 


FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. On or about Novenlber 6, 2006, Complainant Virginia Herold, in her official 

capacity as the Interiln Executive Officer of the Board ofPhannacy, Department of Consumer 

Affairs, filed Accusation No. 3002 against Glelul Greenberg (Respondent) before the Board of 

Phannacy. 

2. On or about April 24, 1998, the Board of Pharmacy (Board) issued Original 

Pharnlacist License NO.-RPH 49982 to Respondent. The Original Pharmacist License was in full 

force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and will expire on October 31, 

2007, unless renewed. 
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3. On or about November 9,2006, Tess Bautista, an employee of the Department of 

Justice, served by Certified and First Class Mail a copy of the Accusation No. 3002, Statement to 

Respondent, Notice of Defense, Request for Discovery, and Govenunent Code sections 11507.5, 

11507.6, and 11507.7 to Respondent's address of record with the Board, which was and is 30153 

Callaway Circle, MUlTieta, CA 72563. A copy of the Accusation, the related documents, and 

Declaration of Service are attached as exhibit A, and are incorporated herein by reference. 

4. Service of the Accusation was effective as a lnatter of law under the provisions of 

Government Code section 11505, subdivision (c). 

5. On or about Novelnber 27, 2006, the receipt for service of the celiified ll1ailing 

was retunled, showing the signature of Respondent and statnped Novenlber 20,2006. A copy of 

the postal receipt for celiified lnail delivery is attached as exhibit B are incorporated herein by 

reference. 

6. Govennnent Code section 11506 states, in pertinent pali: 

"(c) The respondent shall be entitled to a hearing on the merits if the respondent files a 

notice of defense, and the notice shall be deellled a specific denial of all patis of the accusation 

not expressly adnlitted. Failur.e to file a notice of defense shall constitute a waiver of 

respondent's right to a hearing, but the agency in its discretion may nevertheless grant a hearing. " 

7. Respondent failed to file a Notice of Defense within 15 days after service upon 

hiln of the Accusation, and therefore waived his right to a hearing on the lnerits of Accusation 

No. 3002. 

8. California Govenullent Code section 11520 states, in pertinent part: 

"(a) lfthe respondent either fails to file a notice of defense or to appear at the hearing, the 

agency may take action based upon the respondent's express admissions or upon other evidence 

and affidavits may be used as evidence without any notice to respondent." 

9. Pursuant to its authority under Govenullent Code section 11520, the Board finds 

Respondent is in default. The Board will take action without fuliher hearing atld, based on 

Respondent's express adlllissions by way of default and the evidence before it, contained in 

exhibits A, Band C, finds that the allegations in Accusation No. 3002 are true. 
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10. The total costs for investigation and enforcement are $987.50 as ofDecelnber 12, 

2006. 

DETERMINATION OF ISSUES 

1. Based on the foregoing findings of fact, Respondent Gleml Greenberg has 

subjected his Original Phannacist License No. RPH 49982 to discipline. 

2. A copy of the Accusation and the related documents and Declaration of Service 

are attached. 

3. The agency has jurisdiction to adjudicate this case by default. 

4. The Board of Phannacy is authorized to revoke Respondent's Original Phannacist 

License based upon the following violations alleged in the Accusation: 

a. 2005 conviction of a crinle substantially related to the qualifications, 

functions, or duties of a phanllacist: Inisdelneanor assault, a violation of Business & Professions 

Code §§4301(1) and 490; 

b. 2004 conviction of a crilne substantially related to the qualifications, 

functions, or duties of a phanllacist: Inisdelneanor assault with a deadly weapon by means likely 

to produce great bodily injury, a violation ofBusinestr & Profes_siQllS Code §§4301(1) and 490; 

ORDER 

IT IS SO ORDERED that Original Phannacist License No. RPH 49982, heretofore issued 

to Respondent Glenn Greenberg, is revoked. 

Pursuant to GovenUllent Code section 11520, subdivision (c), Respondent Inay serve a 

written motion requesting that the Decision be vacated and stating the grounds relied on within 

seven (7) days after service of the Decision on Respondent. The agency in its discretion may 
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vacate the Decision and grant a hearing on a showing of good cause, as defined in the statute. 

This Decision shall beconle effective on February 21, 2007 

It is so ORDERED January 22, 2007 

Attaclunents: 

Exhibit A: Accusation No.3002, Related Docllnlents, and Declaration of Service 
Exhibit B: Postal RenInl Receipt for Certified Mail 
Exhibit C: Celiificate of Costs - Declaration of Susan Fitzgerald 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

By 
WILLIAM POWERS 
Board President 

4 




Exhibit A 


Accusation No. 3002, 

Related Docun1ents and Declaration of Service 




5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

2 

3 

4 

6 

7 

8 

9 

11 

12 

13 

14 

16 

T7· 

,18 

19 

21 

22 

23 

24 

26 

27 

28 III 

BILL LOCKYER, Atton1ey General 
of the State of Califonlia 

MARGARET A. LAFI(O 
Lead Supervising Deputy Attonley General 

SUSAN FITZGERALD, State Bar No. 112278 
Deputy Attonley General 

Califonlia Departnlent of Justice 
110 West "A" Street, Suite 1100 
San Diego, CA 92101 

P.O. Box 85266 
San Diego, CA 92186-5266 
Telephone: (619) 645-2066 
Facsimile: (619) 645-2061 

Attonleys for COll1plainant 

BEFORE THE 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

GLEN1\J GREE1\fBERG 
30153 Callaway Circle 
MluTieta, CA 72563 

Original Phannacist License No. RPH 49982

'"Respondent. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Case l\To. 3002 

ACCUSATION 

) 
) 
).
) 
) 

.  

Conlplainant alleges: 

PARTIES 

1. Virginia Herold (C01nplainant) brings this Accusation solely in her official 

capacity as the Acting Executive Officer of the Board of Phanllacy, Department of ConSUlner 

Affairs. 

2. On or about April 24, 1998, the Board of Phannacy issued Original Phannacist 

License Nunlber RPH 49982 to Glenn Greenberg (Respondent). The Oliginal Phannacist 

License was in full force and effect at all tinles relevant to the charges brought herein and will 

expire on October 31, 2007, unless renewed. 



5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

2 

3 

4 

6 

7 

8 

9 

11 

12 

13 

14 

16 

. ··17 

18 

19 

21 

22 

23 

24 

26 

27 

28 

-

JURISDICTION 

3. This Accusation is brought before the Board of Phan11acy (Board), Department of 

Consulner Affairs, under the authority of the following laws. All section references are to the 

Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated. 

A. Section 4301 of the Code states: 

"The board shall take action against any holder of a license who is guilty of 


unprofessional conduct or whose license has been procured by fraud or Inisrepresentation or 


issued by n1istake. Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is not lilnited to, any of the 


following: 


" 

"(1) The conviction of a crilne substantially related to the qualifications, functions, and 


duties of a licensee under this chapter. The record of conviction of a violation of Chapter 13 


(comlnencing with Section 801) of Title 21 of the United States Code regulating controlled 


substances or of a violation of the statutes of this state l~egulating controlled substances or 


dangerous drugs shall be conclusive evidence of unprofessional conduct. In all other cases, the 


record of conviction shall be conclusive evidence only of the fact that the conviction occuned. 


The board Inay inquire into the circulnstances sunoundirig the cOlnn1ission of the crime, in order" . 

to fix the degree of discipline or, in the case of a conviction not involving controlled substances 

or dangerous drugs, to detennine if the conviction is of an offense substantially related to the 

qualifications, functions, and duties of a licensee under this chapter. A plea or verdict of guilty 

or a conviction following a plea of nolo contendere is dee1ned to be a conviction within the 

Ineaning of this provision. The board n1ay take action when the time for appeal has elapsed, or 

the judgInent of conviction has been affin11ed on appeal or when an order granting probation is 

Inade suspending the ilnposition of sentence, inespective of a subsequent order under Section 

1203.4 of the Penal Code allowing the person to withdraw his or her plea of guilty and to enter a 

plea of not guilty, or setting aside the verdict of guilty, or disn1issing the accusation, infon11ation, 

or indictlnent. 

" 
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B. Section 490 of the Code states: 

"A board ll1ay suspend or revoke a license on the ground that the licensee has been 

convicted of a clil11e, if the' crin1e is substantially related to the qualifications, functions, 

or duties of the business or profession for which the license was issued. A conviction 

within the n1eaning of this section n1eans a plea or verdict of guilty or a conviction 

fonowing a plea of nolo contendere. Any action which a board is pennitted to take 

following the establishment of a conviction may be taken when the thne for appeal has 

elapsed, or the judgInent of conviction has been affilmed on appeal, or when an order 

granting probation is Inade suspending the imposition of sentence, irrespective of a 

subsequent order under the provisions of Section 1203.4 of the Penal Code." 

C. Section 482 of the Code provides in pe1iinent part that the Board n1ust develop 

cliteria for evaluation of rehabilitation where it is considering suspending or revoking a license 

under Code section 490 and take into account all competent evidence of rehabilitation. 

D. Section 125.3 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that the Board 111ay request 

the adlninistrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or 

violations of the licensing act to pay a sun1 not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation 

andenfol"Gelnent nfthe case. 

4. This Accusation als'o refers to the following sections of Title 16, Califonlia Code 

of Regulations (CCR): 

A. CCR section 1769 states in pertinent part: 

"(b) \7Vhen consideling the suspension or revocation of a facility or a personallicense on 

the ground that the licensee or the registrant has been convicted of a CI1lne, the board, in 

evaluating the rehabilitation of such person and his present eligibility for a license will consider 

the following critelia: 

(1) Nature and severity of the act(s) or offense(s). 

(2) Total crin1inal record. 

(3) The tillle that has elapsed since con1n1ission of the act(s) or offense(s). 
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(4) W11ether the licensee has cOlnplied with all tenns of parole, probation, restitution or 

any other sanction lawfully in1posed against the licensee. 

(5) Evidence, if any, of rehabilitation sublnitted by the licensee. 11 

B. CCR section 1770 states: 

"For the purpose of denial, suspension, or revocation of a personal or facility license 

pursuant to Division 1.5 (colnn1encing with Section 475) of the Business and Professions Code, a 

crin1e or act shall be considered to be substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or 

duties of a licensee or registrant if to a substantially degree it evidences present or potential 

unfitness of a licensee or registrant to perfonn the functions authorized by his license or 

registration in a Inal111er consistent with the public health, safety, or welfare." 

CHARGES AND ALLEGATIONS 

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Unprofessional Conduct: Conviction for Substantially Related Crin1e - 6/16/05 
5/27/05 Incident - Assault) 

5. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under Code sections 4301(1) and 490 

in that he was convicted of a crhne substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties 

of a phannacist.::Thecircun1stances·are as follows·: " 

A. On or about June 16, 2005, in San Diego Superior Couli Case No. CN195417, 

People v. Glenn Greenberg, Respondent pled guilty and was convicted of n1isden1eanor assault, a 

violation of Penal Code section 240. 

B. The facts and circulnstances sunounding this conviction are as follows: 

On May 27,2005, Respondent threw large stones at both children and adults on the beach 

at Cardiff State Beach in Encinitas, Califoll1ia. When contacted by law enforcelnent, Respondent 

was shaking, constantly n1un1bling quietly, and when asked ifhe was throwing rocks down on 

the beach, responded, "I saw rocks on top of the bluff and that they 111ade IDe nervous so I1110ved 

away fron1 the bluff." Respondent could not follow silnple verbal con11nands and fidgeted 

constantly. 
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C. Respondent was sentenced to 3 years SUlnlnary probation, to pay a $775 fine, and 

to successfully c0111plete a 12-session anger 111anagement progrmn. 

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Unprofessional Conduct: Conviction for Substantially Related Crime - 1/15/04 
8/26/02 Incident - ADW by Means Likely to Produce Great Bodily Injury) 

6. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under Code sections 4301(1) and 490 

in that he was convicted of a crilne substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties 

of a pharmacist. The circulnstances are as follows: 

A. On or about January 1, 2004, in Los Angeles Superior Court Case }'\10. 3JM00028, 

People v. Glenn Greenberg, Respondent pled nolo contendere and was convicted of 

Inisdelneanor assault with a deadly weapon by Ineans likely to produce great bodily injury, a 

violation of Penal Code section 245(A)(l). 

Probation was revoked on or about March 24, 2004 and a bench warrant issued for 

Respondent's arrest. On or about August 16,2004, probation was reinstated with an order of 

restitution in the aInount of $2,223 .17 paid by Respondent. 

B. The facts and circulnstances surrounding this conviction are as follows: 

On August 26, 2002, arroff:.dutypolice 'officet riding his l11otorcycle vyas ~hnost hit by 

Respondent, who was driving a car. Thereafter, when the police officer drove up along side of 

Respondent, flashed his badge and told Respondent to pull over, Respondent put his car in 

reverse, backed up, then accelerated it forward, hitting the Inotorcycle and causing the police 

officer to fall to the ground, injuring the wrist of the police officer. Respondent ran over the 

1110torcycle's rear tire, 111ade a u-tu111 and drove erratically, nearly hitting pedestrians whi~e being 

pursued by the police officer. 

C. Respondent was sentenced to 3 years SU111Inary probation, 60 days i11 jail, to pay 

various fines and to successfully c0111plete a 12-session anger Inanagelnent pro graIn. 
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PRAYER 

WHEREFORE, Conlplainant requests that a hearing be held on the nlatters herein 

alleged, and that following the hearing, the Board of Pha1111acy issue a decision: 

1. Revoking or suspending Original Phanl1ac1st License NUll1ber RPH 49982, issued 

to Olelul Greenberg; 

2. Ordering Olelul Greenberg to pay the Board of Pharrnacy the reasonable costs of 

the investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and Professions Code 

section 125.3; 

3. z:g such other and further action as deemed necessary and popeL 

DATED: /1 Co ,2006. 

IRG 
Interil 
Board al1nacy 
Depmiment of ConSUl11er Affairs 
State of Califo111ia 
C0111plainant 
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BILL LOCKYER, Attorney General 
of the State of CalifOlnia 

MARGARET A. LAFKO 
Supervising Deputy Atto111ey General 

SUSAN L. FITZGERALD, State Bar No. 112278 
Deputy Attorney General 

California Departlnent of Justice 
110 West "A" Street, Suite 1100 
San Diego, CA 92101 

P.O. Box 85266 
San Diego, CA 92186-5266 
Telephone: (619) 645-2066 
Facsinlile: (619) 645-2061 

Attorneys for COlnplainant 

BEFORE THE 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

GLENN IRA GREENBERG, RPH 

Respondent. 

Case No. 3002 

STATEMENT TO RESPONDENT 

[Gov. Code §§ 11504, 11505(b)] 

TO RESPONDENT: 

Enclosed is a copy of the Accusation that has been filed with the Board of 

Phannacy of the Departlnent of Consulner Affairs (Board), and which is hereby served on you. 

Unless a written request for a hearing signed by you or on your behalf is delivered 

or lllailed to the Board, represented by Deputy Atto11ley General Susan L. Fitzgerald, within 

fifteen (15) days after a copy of the Accusation was personally served on you or Inailed to you, 

you will be deel1led to have waived your right to a hearing in this Inatter and the Board nlay 

proceed upon the Accusation without a hearing and Inay take action thereon as provided by law. 

The request for hearing 11lay be 11lade by delivering or nlailing one of the enclosed 

f01111s entitled "Notice of Defense," or by delivering or nlailing a Notice of Defense as provided 

in section 11506 of the Gove1111nent Code, to 
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Susan L. Fitzgerald 

Deputy Attorney General 

110 West "A" Street, Suite 1100 

San Diego, California 92101 


P.O. Box 85266 

San Diego, California 92186-5266. 


You Inay, but need not, be represented by counsel at any or all stages of these 

proceedings. 

The enclosed Notice of Defense, if signed and filed with the Board, shall be 

deelned a specific denial of all pmis of the Accusation, but you will not be pennitted to raise any 

objection to the fon11 of the Accusation unless you file a further Notice of Defense as provided in 

section 11506 of the GovenU11ent Code within fifteen (15) days after service of the Accusation 

on you. 

If you file any Notice of Defense within the time pennitted, a hearing will be held 

on the charges Inade in the Accusation. 

The hearing may be postponed for good cause. If you have good cause, you are 

obliged to notify the Office of Adlninistrative Hearings, 1350 Front Street, Suite 6022, San 

Diego, California 92101, within ten (10) working days after you discover the good cause. Failure 

to notify the Office of Adlninistrative Hearings within ten (! 0) days will. deprive you of a 

postponelnent. 

Copies of sections 11507.5,11507.6, and 11507.7 of the Governn1ent Code are 

enclosed. 

If you desire the nmnes and addresses of witnesses or an oppoliunity to inspect 

and copy the itelns Inentioned in section 11507.6 of the GovenU11ent Code in the possession, 

custody or control of the Board you Inay send a Request for Discovery to the above designated 

Deputy Atton1ey General. 

NOTICE REGARDING STIPULATED SETTLEMENTS 

It Inay be possible to avoid the time, expense and unceliainties involved in an 

adlninistratjve hearing by disposing of this ll1atter through a stipulated settlement. A stipulated 

settlelnent is a binding wlitten agreelnent between you and the govenunent regarding the Inatters 
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charged and the discipline to be iInposed. Such a stipulation would have to be approved by the 

Board ofPhannacy but, once approved, it would be incorporated into a final order. 

Any stipulation n1ust be consistent with the Board's established disciplinary 

guidelines; however, all matters in mitigation or aggravation will be considered. A copy of the 

Board's Disciplinary Guidelines will be provided to you on your written request to the state 

agency bringing this action. 

If you are interested in pursuing this alternative to a fonnal adlninistrative hearing, 

or if you have any questions, you or your atton1ey should contact Deputy AttoTI1ey General Susan 

L. Fitzgerald at the earliest opportunity. 
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BEFORE THE 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

GLENNlRAGREENBERG,RPH 

Respondent. 

Case No. 3002 

NOTICE OF DEFENSE 

[Gov. Code §§ 11505 and 11506J 

I, the undersigned Respondent in the above-entitled proceeding, hereby acknowledge receipt of a 
copy of the Accusation; Statelnent to Respondent; Govenunent Code sections 11507.5, 11507.6 and 
11507.7, Complainant's Request for Discovery; and two copies of a Notice of Defense. 

I hereby request a hearing to pennit Ine to present Iny defense to the charges contained in the 
Accusation. 

DATED: 


Respondent's Nmne 


Respondent's Signature 

Respondent's Mailing Address 

City, State and Zip Code 

Respondent's Telephone NUInber 

.Check appropriate box: 

o 	

o 	

I do not consent to electronic reporting. 

The hearing in this case will be electronically reported/recorded, unless you check the above-left 
box to indicate that you do not consent to electronic recording, in which case the hearing will be 
reported by a stenographic reporter. If you do not check this box, you Inay withdraw your 
consent to electronic recording at any point up to fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the date set 
for hearing, by a written stateInent served on the Office of AdIninistrative Hearings and on 
counsel for COlnplainant. If the box is not checked, and no written withdrawal of consent is 
served on the Office of Adn1inistrative Hearing and on counsel for COlnplainant by fifteen (15) 
calendar days prior to the hearing, you waive any right to stenographic reporting. 

I mn represented by counsel, whose nan1e, address and telephone nUInber appear below: 


Counsel's Nan1e 


Counsel's Mailing Address 

City, State and Zip Code 

Counsel's Telephone NUInber 



o I mn not now represented by counsel. If and when counsel is retained, iInlnediate notification of 
the att01ney's name, address and telephone nUlnber will be filed with the Office of 
Adlninistrative Hearing and a copy sent to counsel for Complainant so that counsel will be on 
record to receive legal notices, pleadings and other papers. 

The agency taking the action described in the Accusation Inay have fon11ulated guidelines to 
assist the adlninistrative law judge in reaching an appropriate penalty. You Inay obtain a copy of the 
guidelines by requesting theln froln the agency in writing. 
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BEFORE TH;E 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

GLENN IRA GREENBERG, RPH 

Respondent. 

Case No. 3002 

NOTICE OF DEFENSE 

[Gov. Code §§ 11505 and 11506] 

I, the undersigned Respondent in the above-entitled proceeding, hereby acknowledge receipt of a 
copy of the Accusation; Statement to Respondent; Govenunent Code sections 11507.5, 11507.6 and 
11507.7, COlnplainant's Request for Discovery; and two copies of a Notice of Defense. 

I hereby request a hearing to pennit lne to present lny defense to the charges contained in the 
Accusation. 

DATED: 


Respondent's N aIne 


Respondent's Signature 

Respondent's Mailing Address 

City, State and Zip Code 

Respondent's Telephone NUlnber 

Check appropria~e box: 

o 	

o 	

I do 110t consent to electronic repoliing. 

The hearing in this case will be electronically reported/recorded, unless you check the above-left 
box to indicate that you do not consent to electronic recording, in which case the hearing will be 
repOliec1 by a stenographic repolier. If you do not check this box, you lnay withdraw your 
consent to electronic recording at any point up to fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the date set 
for hearing, by a written staten1ent served on the Office of Adlninistrative Hearings and on 
counsel for Con1plainant. If the box is not checked, and no written withdrawal of consent is 
served on the Office of Adlninistrative Hearing and on counsel for COlnplainant by fifteen (15) 
calendar days prior to the hearing, you waive any right to stenographic repOliing. 

I mTI represented by counsel, whose naITIe, address and telephone nUlTIber appear below: 


Counsel's N aIne 


Counsel's Mailing Address 

City, State and Zip Code 

Counsel's Telephone NUlnber 



o 'I aln not now represented by counsel. If and when counsel is .retained, iInmediate notification of 
the attOTI1ey's natne, address and telephone nUlnber will be filed with the Office of 
Administrative Hearing and a copy sent to counsel for C0111plainant so that counsel will be on 
record to receive legal notices, pleadings and other papers. 

The agency taking the action described in the Accusation Inay have fonnulated guidelines to 
assist the adlninistrative law judge in reaching an appropriate penalty. You Inay obtain a copy of the 
guidelines by requesting theln fron1 the agency in writing. 
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BILL LOCKYER, Attorney General 
of the State of Califo111ia 

MARGARET A. LAFKO 
Supervising Deputy Atto111ey General 

SUSAN L. FITZGERALD, State Bar No. 112278 
Deputy Atto111ey General 

Califo111ia Depmill1ent of Justice 
110 West "A" Street, Suite 1100 
San Diego, CA 92101 

P.O. Box 85266 
San Diego, CA 92186-5266 
Telephone: (619) 645-2066 
Facsilnile: (619) 645-2061 

Atto111eys for COlnplainant 

BEFORE THE 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

GLENN IRA GREENBERG, RPH 

Respondent. 

Case No. 3002 

REQUEST FOR DISCOVERY 

[Gov. Code § 11507.6J 

TO RESPONDENT: 

Under section 11507.6 of the Govel1unent Code of the State of California, parties 

to an adnlinistrative hearing, including the COlnplainant, are entitled to celiain info1111ation 

conce111ing the opposing pmiy's case. A copy of the provisions of section 11507.6 of the 

Govel1unent Code concerning such rights is included mnong the papers served. 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 11507.6 OF THE GOVERNMENT CODE, YOU 

ARE HEREBY REQUESTED TO: 

1. Provide the nanles and addresses of witnesses to the extent known to the 

Respondent, including, but not lilnited to, those intended to be called to testify at the hearing, and 

2. Provide an opportunity for the Complainant to inspect and Inake a copy of any of 

the following in the possession or custody or under control of the Respondent: 
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a. A statement of a person, other than the Respondent, nalned in the initial 

adlninistrative pleading, or in any additional pleading, when it is claimed that the act or 

0111ission of the Respondent as to this person is the basis for the adlninistrative 

proceeding; 

b. A statelnent pertaining to the subj ect nlatter of the proceeding Inade by any 

pmiy to another party or persons; 

c. Statelnents of witnesses then proposed to be called by the Respondent and 

of other persons having personallmowledge of the acts, Olnissions or events which are the 

basis for the proceeding, not included in (a) or (b) above; 

d. All writings, including but not litnited to reports of mental, physical and 

blood exanlinations and things which the Respondent now proposes to offer in evidence; 

e. Any other writing or thing which is relevant and which would be 

adnlissible in evidence, including but not litnited to, any patient or hospital records 

pertaining to the persons nmned in the pleading; 

f. Investigative repOlis made by or on behalf of the Respondent pertaining to 

the subject nlatter of the proceeding, to the extent that these repolis (1) contain the names 

and addr~sses of witnesses or of persons having personal knowledge of the acts, 

omissions or events which are the basis for the proceeding, or (2) reflect Inatters 

perceived by the investigator in the course ofhis or her investigation, or (3) contain or 

include by attachlnent any statelnent or writing described in (a) to (e), inclusive, or 

SUlnlnary thereof. 

For the purpose of this Request for Discovery, "statelnents" include written 

statelnents by the person, signed, or otherwise authenticated by hitn or her, stenographic, 

111echanical, electrical or other recordings, or transcripts thereof, of oral statelnents by the person, 

and written repolis or sUlnlnaries of these oral statelnents. 

YOU ARE HEREBY FURTHER NOTIFIED that nothing in this Request for 

Discovery should be deelned to authorize the inspection or copying of any writing or thing which 

III 
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is pIivileged froln disclosure by law or otherwise n1ade confidential or protected as attOTI1ey's 

wor~ product. 

Your response to this Request for Discovery should be directed to the undersigned 

attOTI1ey for the Con1plainant at the address on the first page of this Request for Discovery within 

30 days after service of the Accusation. 

Failure without substantial justification to cOlnply with this Request for Discovery 

Inay subject the Respondent to sanctions pursuant to sections 11507.7 and 11455.10 to 11455.30 

of the Government Code. 

DATED: Novelnber 9,2006 

BILL LOCK.YER, AttoTI1ey General 
of the State of CalifoTI1ia 

SUSAN L. FITZGERALD 
Deputy Attorney General 

Attorneys for COlnplainant 
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COPY OF GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 11507.5, 11507.6 AND 11507.7 

PROVIDED PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 11504 AND 11505 


SECTION 11507.5: Exclusivity of discovery provisions 

The provisions of Section 11507.6 provide the exclusive right to and Inethod of discovery as to 
any proceeding gove111ed by this chapter. 

SECTION 11507.6: Request for discovery 

After initiation of a proceeding in which a respondent or other party is entitled to a hearing on 
the n1erits, a party, upon written request Inade to another patiy, prior to the hearing and within 30 
days after service by the agency of the initial pleading or within 15 days after the service of an 
additional pleading, is entitled to (1) obtain the natnes and addresses of witnesses to the extent 
known to the other party, including, but not liInited to, those intended to be called to testify at the 
hearing, and (2) inspect and Inake a copy of any of the following in the possession or custody or 
under the control of the other party: 

(a) A statelnent of a person, other than the respondent, natned in the initial administrative 

pleading, or in any additional pleading, when it is clailned that the act or olnission of the 

respondent as to this person is the basis for the adlninistrative proceeding; 


(b) A statelnent pertaining to the subject matter of the proceeding made by any paliy to 

another party or person; 


(c) Statelnents of witnesses then proposed to be called by the party and of other persons 

having personal knowledge of the acts, on1issions or events which are the basis for the 

proceeding, not included in (a) or (b) above; . 


(d) All writirigs, indudii1g, but not limited to, reports of Inental , physical" and blood 

exatninations and things which the party then proposes to offer in evidence; 


(e) Any other writing or thing which is relevant and which would be admissible in 
. evidence; 

(f) Investigative reports Inade by or on behalf of the agency or other patiy pertaining to the 
subj ect Inatter of the proceeding, to the extent that these reports (1) contain the names and 
addresses of witnesses or ofpersons having personal knowledge of the acts, O1nissions or events 
which are the basis for the proceeding, or (2) reflect matters perceived by the investigator in the 
course of his or her investigation, or (3) contain or include by attachment any statelnent or 
writing described in (a) to (e), inclusive, or SUlnlnary thereof. 

For the purpose of this section, "staten1ents" include written statelnents by the person signed 
or otherwise authenticated by hiIn or her, stenographic, Inechanical, electrical or other 
recordings, or transcripts thereof, of oral statelnents by the person, and written reports or 
SUlnlnaries of these oral statelnents. 

Nothing in this section shall authorize the inspection or copying of any writing or thing 

which is privileged froln disclosure by law or otherwise Inade confidential or protected as the 

att0111ey's work product. 




SECTION 11507.7: Petition to compel discovery; Order; Sanctions 

(a) Any party clailning the party's request for discovery pursuant to Section 11507.6 has not 
been c0111plied with Inay serve and file with the adIninistrative law judge a Inotion to con1pel 
discovery, naming as r.espondent the party refusing or failing to cOlnply with Section 11507.6. 
The Inotion shall state facts showing the respondent party failed or refused to cOInply with 
Section 11507.6, a description of the Inatters sought to be discovered, the reason or reasons why 
the Inatter is discoverable under that section, that a reasonable and good faith attempt to contact 
the respondent for an infonnal resolution of the issue has been Inade, and the ground or grounds 
of respondent's refusal so far as known to the Inoving party. 

(b) The n10tion shall be served upon respondent party and filed within 15 days after the 
respondent party first evidenced failure or refusal to cOlnply with Section 11507.6 or within 30 
days after request was Inade and the party has failed to reply to the request, or within another 
tilue provided by stipulation, whichever period is longer. 

(c) The hearing on the n10tion to con1pel discovery shall be held within 15 days after the 
I11otion is Inade, or a later tilne that the adIninistrative law judge n1ay on the judge's own Iuotion 
for good cause deten11ine. The respondent party shall have the light to serve and file a written 
answer or other response to the Iuotion before or at the tiIne of the hearing. 

(d) Where the Inatter sought to be discovered is under the custody or control of the 
respondent paIiy and the respondent paIiy asselis that the matter is not a discoverable Inatter 
under the provisions of Section 11507.6, or is privileged against disclosure under those 
provisions, the adIninistrative law judge may order lodged with it matters provided in 
subdivision (b) of Section 9.15 of the Evidence Code and eXaInine the Inatters in accordance with 
its provisions. 

(e) The adIninistrative law judge shall decide the case on the matters eXaInined in CaInera, 
the p~pers filed by the paIiies, and such oral argu111ent and additional evidence as the 
adIninistrati~e law judge Inay allow. .~ . 

(f) Unless otherwise stipulated by the parties, the ad111inistrative law judge shall no later 
than 15 days after the hearing 111ake its order denying or granting the n10tion. The order shall be 
in writing setting forth the Inatters the Iuoving paIiy is entitled to discover under Section 
11507.6. A copy of the order shall fOIihwith be served by Inail by the adIninistrative law judge 
upon the paIiies. Where the order grants the Inotion in whole or in paIi, the order shall not 
beCOll1e effective until 10 days after the date the order is served. Where the order denies relief to 
the Illoving party, the order shall be effective on the date it is served. 

*********** 
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DECLARATION OF SERVICE BY CERTIFIED MAIL AND FIRST CLASS MAIL 
(Separate Mailings) . 

Case Name: In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Glen Ira Greeberg. RPH 
Case No.: 3002 

I declare: 

I aIn eInployed in the Office of the Attorney General, which is the office of a meInber of the 
California State Bar at which member's direction this service is made. laIn 18 years of age or 
older and not a party to this matter. I am familiar with the business practice at the Office of the 
AttOTIley General for collection and processing ofcorrespondence for mailing with the United 
States Postal Service. In accordance with that practice, correspondence placed in the intelnal 
Inail collection system at the Office of the AttOTIley General is deposited with the United States 
Postal Service that same day in the ordinary course of business. 

On NoveInber 9,2006, I served the attached Accusation, Statenlent to Respondent, Notice of 
Defense (2 copies); Request for Discovery and Discovery Statutes by placing a true copy 
thereof enclosed in a sealed envelope as certified mail with postage thereon fully prepaid and 
return receipt requested, and another true copy of the Accusation, Statement to Respondent, 
Notice of Defense (2 copies); Request for Discovery and Discovery Statutes was enclosed in 
a second sealed envelope as first class mail with postage thereon fully prepaid, in the internal 
mail collection system at the Office of the Attorney General at 110 West A Street, Suite 1100, 
P.O. Box 85266, San Diego, CA 92186-5266, addressed as follows: 

Glenn Ira Greenberg, RPH 
30251 Callaway Circle 
Murrieta, CA 92563 
In Pro Per 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California the foregoing is true 
and correct and that this declaration was executed on Novelnber 9, 2006, at San Diego, 
CalifoTIlia. 

Tess Bautista 

Declarant / Signature 

cc: Virginia Herold, InteriIn Executive Officer, Board of PhaTIllacy 

80100457.wpd 



Exhibit B 


Postal Return Receipt for Certified Mail 




PS Form 3811,J£lnuarY2005 b'omestic Return' Receipt ,. 

-to· 

"2.. Articj~N(i!l1-b-~r 

;' 

9~ :~. WV LB AON 900Z 
09]10 N'1S 

1Y ti3~~]8 A3~~HOll 't1 SD200680J 262 
Susan L. Filzgerald 

IIIIt JlIlllrllllll'[I]ll[,r~~~::~,~"'~~~~'P\~f! F~~~~,!~ti 
71~O 3901 '1alt' 3221 't~96 

1. Article Addressed to: 

Glenn Ira Greenberg 
30253 Callaway Circle 
Murrieta, CA 92563 



Exhibit C 


Certification of Costs - Declaration of Susan Fitzgerald 
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BILL LOCKYER, Attorney General 
of the State of Califonlia 

MARGARET A. LAFK.O 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 

SUSAN FITZGERALD, State Bar No. 112278 
Deputy Attonley General 

Califonua DepaIilnent of Justice 
11 0 West"A" Street, Suite 1100 
San Diego, CA 92101 

P.O. Box 85266 
San Diego, CA 92186-5266 
Telephone: (619) 645-2066 
FacsiInile: (619) 645-2061 

Attonleys for COlnplainant 

BEFORE THE 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

GLENN GREENBERG 

Respondent. 

. .po 

Case No. 3002 

CERTIFICATION OF COSTS: 
DECLARATION OF SUSAN 
FITZGERALD 

[Business and Professions Code .section 
125.3] 

I, SUSAN FITZGERALD, hereby declare and celiify as follows: 

1. I anl a Deputy Attonley General employed by the Califonlia Depmilnent of Justice 

(DOJ), Office of the Attonley General (Office). I aIn assigned to the Licensing Section in the 

Civil Division of the Office. I have been designated as the representative to celiify the costs of 

prosecution by DOJ and inculTed by the Board of Phannacy in this case. I Inake this celiification 

in nly official capacity and as an officer of the court and as a public elnployee pursuant to 

Evidence Code section 664. 

2. I represent the Conlplainant, Virginia Herold, InteriIn Executive Officer of the 

Board ofPhannacy, in this action. I was assigned to handle this case on or around June 20, 2006. 
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3. Our office's cOlnputerized case managelnent systenl reflect that the following 

persons have also perfonned tasks related to this matter: DAG Susan Fitzgerald. 

4. I anl fanliliar with the titne recording and billing practices of DOJ and the 

procedure for charging the client agency for the reasonable and necessary work performed on a 

pa1iicular case. It is the duty of the tinle keeping enlployees to keep track of the tinle spent and 

to report that ti1ne in DOJ's conlputerized case Inanagelnent systeln at or near the tilne of the 

tasks perfonned. 

5. On Decenlber 12, 2006, I requested a billing SUlllillary for this case fronl the 

Accounting Depa1inlent of the DOJ. In response on, Decenlber 12,2006, I received a doculnent 

entitled "Matter Tinle Activity by Professional Type." I hereby celiify that the Matter Tinle 

Activity by Professional Type, attached hereto as Exhibit A, and herein incorporated by 

reference, is a tlue and conect copy of the billing sununary for this nlatter that I received fronl 

the Accounting Departnlent. The sunlnlary includes the billing costs incurred by nle; and sets 

forth the tasks undeliaken, the atnount oftitne billed for the activity, and the billing rate by 

professional type. The billing sunlnlary is cOlnprehensive of the charges by the Office to the 

Board ofPhanllacy thTough DeceInber 11,2006.)t 4o_e~ not incluqe billing for tasks per!onned 

after Decenlber 11, 2006, up to the date of hearing. 

6. Based upon the tinle repolied tlu'ough Decenlber 11, 2006, as set f01ih in Exhibit 

A, DOJ has billed the Board ofPhannacy $ 987.50 for the ti1ne spent worldng on the above 

entitled case. 

7. To the best ofnlY lrnowledge the items of cost set f01ih in this certification are 

correct and were necessarily incuned in this case. 

I certify under penalty of pe1jury under the laws of the State of Califonlia that the 

foregoing is true and correct. 

Executed on Decenlber 12, 2006 in San Diego, Califonlia. 

~~#f~ 
Deputy Attonley General, Declarant 
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BILL LOCKYER 
Attorney General 

State ofCalifornia 
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

1300 I Street, Sacramento, CA 95814 

Billing Inquiries: (916) 324-5090 

Matter Time Activity By Professional Type As Of 12/12/2006 

Trans # Date Section Client Task Hours Worked Rate Amount Adj? Stmn Date 

Matter 10: 502006801262 Date Opened: 06/20/2006 
Description: Greenberg, Glenn Ira, RPH 

Professional Type: ATTORNEY 

Fiscal Year: 2006-2007 

Professional: Susan L. Fitzgerald 

800211513 08/16/06 CV-LlC:110 03583 Case Evaluation/Assessment 

800211515 08/16/06 CV-LlC:110 03583 Client Communication 

800214842 08/29/06 CV-LlC:110 03583 Client Communication 

800215201 08/31/06 CV-LlC:110 03583 Client Communication 

800217825 09/13/06 CV-LlC:110 03583 Client Communication 

800217830 09/13/06 CV-LlC:110 03583 Pleading Preparation 

800217970 09/14/06 CV-LlC:110 03583 Pleading Preparation 

800218637 09/18/06 CV-LlC:110 03583 Investigation 

800231557 11/09/06 CV-LlC:110 03583 Case Management 

800234399 11/22106 CV-LlC:110 03583 I nvestigatio n 

800235043 11/28/06 CV-LlC:110 03583 Case Management 

800237581 12/07/06 CV-LlC:110 03583 Client Communication 

1.25 

0.25 

0.25 

0.25 

0.25 

2.25 

0.25 

0.25 

0.25 

0.50 

0.25 

0.25 

$158.00 

$158.00 

$158.00 

$158.00 

$158.00 

$158.00 

$158.00 

$158.00 

$158.00 

$158.00 

$158.00 

$158.00 

$197.50 

$39.50 

$39.50 

$39.50 

$39.50 

$355.50 

$39.50 

$39.50 

$39.50 

$79.00 

$39.50 

$39.50 

08/31/06 

08/31/06 

08/31/06 

08/31/06 

09/30/06 

09/30106 

09/30/06 

09/30/06 

11/30106 

11/30/06 

11/30106 

Susan L. Fitzgerald Totals: 6.25 $987.50 

$987.50 2006-2007 Totals: 6.25 

ATTORNEY Totals: 6.25 $987.50 

j ~ 

502006801262 Totals: 6.25 $987.50 

Date: 12112106 01:34PM Page 1 of 1 (AMM001) 


